
 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
John Grieve 
Governance & Scrutiny 
Support, Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Telephone No: 
 

 
Governance & Scrutiny 
Support  
 
 
 
0113 3788662 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
1 

 

 

 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 

Friday, 10th January, 2020 at 9.30 am 
 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
 

S Arif 
 

R Charlwood 
 

G Latty 
 

J Lewis 
 

F Venner 
 

Liberal Democrat Nominee 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

2 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  ELECTION OF CHAIR 
 
To elect a Chair for the duration of the meeting. 
 

 

2   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded) 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 

 

3   
 

  EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 
 
To resolve that the public be excluded from the 
meeting under the terms of Access to Information 
Procedure Rule 10.4(1) and (2) and on the 
grounds that, in all the circumstances of the case, 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information by reason of the need to maintain the 
competitive nature of the interview process and to 
retain information submitted by individual 
applicants in confidence, as disclosure could 
undermine the process, future appointment 
processes, or the outcome on this occasion to the 
detriment of the Council’s and public interest. 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES 
 
To receive apologies for absence (If any) 
 

 



 

 
3 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

6   
 

  GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS REGARDING 
RECRUITMENT TO THE POSITION OF 
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
 
To receive a report by the City Solicitor which 
provides an overview of the governance 
arrangements and format for this specific 
Employment Committee which will have 
responsibility for the recruitment to the position of 
Director of Public Health. 
 
 
(Report & Appendix attached) 
 

1 - 12 

7   
 

 10.4(1, 
2) 

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 
HEALTH 
 
To consider a report by the Director of Adults and 
Health which presents a proposal to the 
Employment Committee to permanently appoint to 
the post of Director of Public Health in the Adults 
and Health Directorate.  
 
 
(Cover report & Appendix Nos 1 & 2 attached) 
 
 
(Please note that Appendix No.2 is designated as 
exempt from publication under the provisions of 
Access to information Procedural Rule 10.4(1) & 
(2))  
 

13 - 
186 



 

 
4 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

   THIRD PARTY RECORDING 
 
 
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable 
those not present to see or hear the proceedings 
either as they take place (or later) and to enable 
the reporting of those proceedings.  A copy of the 
recording protocol is available from the contacts 
named on the front of this agenda. 
 
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of 
practice 
 
a) Any published recording should be 

accompanied by a statement of when and 
where the recording was made, the context 
of the discussion that took place, and a 
clear identification of the main speakers and 
their role or title. 

 
b) Those making recordings must not edit the 

recording in a way that could lead to 
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the 
proceedings or comments made by 
attendees.  In particular there should be no 
internal editing of published extracts; 
recordings may start at any point and end at 
any point but the material between those 
points must be complete. 

 

 

 

     

2      

     

    
 

 

a)      

b)      

     



 

 

Report of the City Solicitor 

Report to the Employment Committee 

Date: 10th January 2020 

Subject: Governance Arrangements Regarding Recruitment to the Position of 
Director of Public Health. 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 The Employment Committee has been established by full council to ‘appoint or 
dismiss or take disciplinary action against’ those senior officers, as defined within 
the Officer Employment Procedure Rules and the Committee’s Terms of 
Reference.   

1.2 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an overview of the 
governance arrangements and format for this specific Employment Committee 
which will have responsibility for the recruitment to the post of Director of Public 
Health. 

2 Main issues 

2.1 Quorum and Membership – The Constitution requires that the membership of an 
Employment Committee be a minimum of 3 and must include one member of the 
Executive. Agreement has been reached for the  membership of this Employment 
Committee to be 6, with members being  appointed in the following proportions: 

Labour 

4 

Conservative 

1 

Liberal Democrat 

1 

 

 Report author:  John Grieve 

Tel:  (0113) 37 88662 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



 

 

2.2 Meeting Adjournments This recruitment exercise will require two distinct sessions; 
including one session for long/short listing exercises (10th January 2020) and a 
formal interview session (31st January 2020). The Employment Committee 
meeting will be formally adjourned at the conclusion of each session and then 
reconvened at the commencement of the next.  Interim minutes will be produced 
at the end of each stage and a final minute published at the conclusion of the 
recruitment exercise. 

2.3 Members are asked to also note that the quorum for an Employment Committee is 
2 Members, including 1 Member of the Executive Board.   

2.4 Exempt information The Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules allow 
for a Committee to resolve to exclude the public and press from those parts of the 
meeting where it is likely that in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted, confidential or ‘exempt’ information will be disclosed and that the 
Committee deems that maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.  Given the nature of the information being considered 
as part of this recruitment exercise it will be necessary for the committee to 
consider making such a resolution prior to considering the information contained 
within agenda item 7. 

2.5 Officer Employment Procedure Rules Attached at Appendix A are the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rule, the committee must conduct proceedings and make 
decisions in accordance with these rules.  

3 Corporate Considerations 

3.1 Consultation and Engagement  

3.1.1 At the commencement of each Employment Committee cycle, the relevant Group 
Whips are consulted upon the membership arrangements for that Committee. 

3.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

3.2.1 No implications 

3.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

3.3.1 The aim of this report, which is to ensure consistency and transparency of 
decision making throughout each Employment Committee recruitment process 
supports the ambition to be “The Best City and Best Council” and is consistent 
with Council values. 

3.4 Resources and value for money  

3.4.1 No implications 

3.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

3.5.1 The aim of this report is to inform Members of the Constitutional and legal 
requirements are met as part of the Employment Committee decision making 
process. 

Page 2



 

 

3.5.2 The Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules allow for a Committee to 
resolve to exclude the public and press from those parts of the meeting where it is 
likely that in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, confidential or 
‘exempt’ information will be disclosed and that the Committee deems that 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information. Given the nature of the matters considered by Employment 
Committee, this report provides Members with background and guidance on the 
consideration and disclosure of exempt and confidential information. 

3.5.3 The report is not subject to Call In.  

3.6 Risk Management 

3.6.1 The purpose of this report is to minimise any risks around the Committee’s 
decision making processes and to ensure that the Committee’s decisions are 
taken in line with all Constitutional and legal requirements. 

4 Conclusions 

4.1        This report provides Members with an overview of the governance arrangements 
and format for the Employment Committee.  

5 Recommendations 

The Committee is recommended to note:- 

(i)  The governance arrangements and format relating to the Employment 
Committee; 

(ii)  The Council’s requirements regarding the consideration and disclosure of 
confidential and ‘exempt’ information.  

6 Background documents1  

6.1 None 

                                            
1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Officer Employment Procedure Rules                

Part 4(j) 
Page 1 of 7 

Issue 1- 2018/19 
1st April 2017 

OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES 
 
1.0 RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT 
 
1.1 Declarations 
 

(a) The Council will draw up a statement requiring any candidate for appointment 
as an officer to state in writing whether they are the parent, grandparent, 
partner, child, stepchild, adopted child, grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, 
aunt, nephew or niece of an existing Councillor or officer of the Council, or of 
the partner of such persons.  A candidate who fails to declare such 
relationship will be automatically disqualified from such appointment with 
immediate effect. 

 
(b) No candidate so related to a Councillor or an officer will be appointed without 

the authority of the relevant Director or an officer nominated by him/her for 
that purpose. 

 
(c) Every Member and senior officer of the Council shall disclose to the relevant 

Director any relationship known to that person to exist with a candidate for 
any appointment.  It shall be the duty of the relevant Director to report to the 
Council or to the appropriate Committee or Sub-Committee including any 
Member or officer to whom power has been delegated to make an 
appointment, any such disclosure made by a candidate, Member, or senior 
officer. 

 
(d) Directors shall record in a book to be kept for the purpose particulars of such 

disclosure made under this Rule. 
 

(e) Where relationship to a Member of the Council is disclosed, that Member 
shall withdraw from the meeting while the appointment is under 
consideration. 

 
1.2 Seeking support for appointment 
 

(a) The Council will disqualify any applicant who directly or indirectly seeks the 
support of any Councillor for any appointment with the Council.  The content 
of this paragraph will be included in any recruitment information. 

 
(b) No Councillor will seek support for any person for any appointment with the 

Council. 
 
1.3  Equal Opportunities 
 

The Council will not unlawfully discriminate in the recruitment and appointment of 
officers and all appointments shall be made on merit. 

Page 5



Officer Employment Procedure Rules                

Part 4(j) 
Page 2 of 7 

Issue 1- 2018/19 
1st April 2017 

 
2.0 RECRUITMENT OF HEAD OF PAID SERVICE AND DIRECTORS 
 
2.1 Where the Council proposes to appoint a Head of Paid Service or a Director1 the 

Council will: 
 

(a) draw up a statement specifying: 
 

(i) the duties of the officer concerned; and 
 
(ii) any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to be 

appointed; 
 

(b) make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a way as is likely to 
bring it to the attention of persons who are qualified for it; and 

 
(c) make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned in paragraph (a) 

to be sent to any person on request. 
 
2.2 Where a post has been advertised as provided in Rule 2.1, the authority shall:- 
 

(a) interview all qualified applicants for the post, or 
 
(b) select a shortlist of such qualified applicants and interview those included on 

the shortlist. 
 
(c) Members of the Executive will be given the names of those candidates to be 

interviewed. 
 
2.3 Where no qualified person has applied, the authority shall make further 

arrangements for advertisement in accordance with Rule 2.1(b). 
 

                                            
 
 
1 “Directors” for the purpose of paragraph 4.1 and “Director” for the purposes of paragraphs 2.1, 4.2 to 4.2.5 
and 7.3 and 7.4 shall mean any officer(s) referred to in sub-paragraph (b), (c), or (d) of paragraph 3 of Part II 
of Schedule 1 of the Local Authorities (Standing Orders)(England) Regulations 2001, namely:  
 , those named as Directors in the Council structure and any other officers who are required to report 

directly to, or who are directly accountable to, the Chief Executive in relation to most or all of the duties 
of their posts; and 

 any officer who is required to report directly to, or is directly accountable to, any officer included within 
the immediately preceding paragraph in relation to all or most of the duties of their post. 

 
 

Page 6



Officer Employment Procedure Rules                

Part 4(j) 
Page 3 of 7 

Issue 1- 2018/19 
1st April 2017 

3.0 APPOINTMENT OF HEAD OF PAID SERVICE 
 
3.1 Following a recommendation of the Employment Committee that a particular 

candidate should be appointed to the post of Head of Paid Service, the Proper 
Officer shall notify every member of the Executive of the following: 

 
3.1.1 The name of the person to whom the Employment Committee recommends that the 

post be offered; 
 
3.1.2 Any other particulars relevant to the appointment which the Employment Committee 

has notified to the Proper Officer2; 
 
3.1.3 The period within which any objection to the making of the offer is to be notified to 

the Proper Officer.  The standard period will be 3 working days, but may be 
shortened by the Chair of the Employment Committee where necessary for the 
proper discharge of the Authority’s functions, subject to a minimum period of 24 
hours. 
 

3.2 The full Council may only make an offer of appointment to the post of Head of Paid 
Service to the person recommended by the Employment Committee provided that: 

 
3.2.1 The Proper Officer has, within the period specified in the notice under paragraph 

3.1.3, notified the full Council that each member of the Executive has stated that 
they do not have any objection to the making of the offer; or 

 
3.2.2 The Proper Officer has notified the full Council that no objection was received by 

him from any member of the Executive within the specified period; or 
 
3.2.3 The full Council is satisfied that any objection which has been received from any 

member of the Executive within the specified period is not material and/or is not 
well-founded or does not outweigh the other factors taken into consideration by the 
Employment Committee3.    

 

                                            
 
 
2 It will be a matter for the Employment Committee to determine in each case what particulars are relevant 
for these purposes, for example: the identity of the proposed appointee’s latest two employers/host 
organisations, the posts or offices held and the duration of employment/office holding in each case. 
 
3 It will be a matter for the full Council to determine in each case whether any particular objection is material 
and/or well-founded, having regard to the relevance of any such objection to the suitability of the particular 
candidate for that particular role, not being matters which relate to a protected characteristic under s.4 of the 
Equality Act 2010. The terms “material” and “well-founded” shall bear their normal dictionary meanings. 
 

Page 7



Officer Employment Procedure Rules                

Part 4(j) 
Page 4 of 7 

Issue 1- 2018/19 
1st April 2017 

4.0 APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS 
 
4.1  The Employment Committee will appoint Directors.   
 
4.2 Before the Employment Committee makes an offer of appointment to the post of 

Director, the Proper Officer shall notify every member of the Executive of the 
following: 

 
4.2.1 The name of the person to whom the Employment Committee intends to offer the 

post; 
 
4.2.2 Any other particulars relevant to the appointment which the Employment Committee 

has notified to the Proper Officer4; 
 
4.2.3 The period within which any objection to the making of the offer is to be notified to 

the Proper Officer.  The standard period will be 3 working days, but may be 
shortened by the Chair of the Employment Committee where necessary for the 
proper discharge of the Authority’s functions, subject to a minimum period of 24 
hours.  

 
4.2.4 The Employment Committee may only make the offer of appointment provided that:  
 
4.2.5 The Proper Officer has, within the period specified in the notice under paragraph 

4.2.3, notified the Employment Committee that each member of the Executive has 
stated that they do not have any objection to the making of the offer; or 

 
4.2.6 The Proper Officer has notified the Employment Committee that no objection was 

received by him from any member of the Executive within the specified period; or 
 
4.2.7 The Employment Committee is satisfied that any objection which has been received 

from any member of the Executive within the specified period is not material and/or 
is not well-founded or does not outweigh the other factors taken into consideration 
by the Employment Committee5.  

 

                                            
 
 
4 It will be a matter for the Employment Committee to determine in each case what particulars are relevant 
for these purposes, for example: the proposed appointee’s latest two employers/host organisations, the 
posts or offices held and the duration of employment/office holding in each case. 
5 It will be a matter for the Employment Committee to determine in each case whether any particular 
objection is material and/or well-founded, having regard to the relevance of any such objection to the 
suitability of the particular candidate for that particular role, not being matters which relate to a protected 
characteristic under s.4 of the Equality Act 2010. The terms “material” and “well-founded” shall bear their 
normal dictionary meanings. 

Page 8



Officer Employment Procedure Rules                

Part 4(j) 
Page 5 of 7 

Issue 1- 2018/19 
1st April 2017 

5.0 OTHER APPOINTMENTS 
 
5.1 Officers below Director.  Appointment of officers below Directors (other than 

assistants to political groups) is the responsibility of the Head of Paid Service or 
his/her nominee, and may not be made by Councillors. 
 

5.2 Assistants to political groups.  Appointment of an assistant to a political group 
shall be made in accordance with the wishes of that political group. 

 
6.0 DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 
6.1 Suspension.  The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance 

Officer may be suspended whilst an investigation takes place into alleged 
misconduct.  

 
6.2 Councillors will not be involved in the disciplinary process in respect of any officer 

below Director level except where such involvement is necessary for any 
investigation or inquiry into alleged misconduct. 

 
7.0 DISMISSAL AND OTHER DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 
7.1 Councillors will not be involved in the dismissal of any officer below Director except 

where such involvement is necessary for any investigation or inquiry into alleged 
misconduct. 
 

7.2 The Head of Paid Service, Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer  
 
7.2.1 Subject to the provisions of paragraph 7.4, the Employment Committee may take 

disciplinary action short of dismissal or recommend to full Council that the Head of 
Paid Service, Chief Finance Officer or Monitoring Officer be dismissed. Only full 
council can approve the dismissal of the Head of Paid Service, the Chief Finance 
Officer or the Monitoring Officer (referred to below in each case as “the relevant 
officer)”. 

 
7.2.2 Before taking a vote at the relevant meeting on whether or not to approve such a 

dismissal, the authority must take into account, in particular- 
(a) any advice, views or recommendations of an independent panel6. 
(b) the conclusions of any investigation into the proposed dismissal; and 
(c) any representations from the relevant officer. 

 

                                            
 
 
6 Appointed under s.102(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 for the purposes of advising the authority on 
matters relating to the dismissal of relevant officers of the authority in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (as amended) 

Page 9



Officer Employment Procedure Rules                

Part 4(j) 
Page 6 of 7 

Issue 1- 2018/19 
1st April 2017 

7.2.3 The independent panel referred to must be appointed by the authority at least 20 
days before the relevant meeting and should comprise a minimum of two 
independent panel members. 

 
7.3 Directors   
 
7.3.1 Subject to paragraph 7.4 and (in the case of the Chief Finance Officer and the 

Monitoring Officer) paragraphs 7.2.1 to 7.2.3, the Employment Committee may 
dismiss or take disciplinary action short of dismissal in respect of Directors.   

 
7.4 Notice of dismissal of a Director (falling within the definition under footnote 1 above) 

must not be given until the Proper Officer has notified every member of the 
Executive of the following: 

 
7.4.1 the name of the person who the Employment Committee proposes to dismiss; 
 
7.4.2 any other particulars relevant to the dismissal7; and 
 
7.4.3 the period within which any objection to the dismissal is to be made by any member  

of the Executive to the Proper Officer; and either: 
 
7.4.4 the Proper Officer has within the specified period notified the Employment 

Committee that each member of the Executive has stated that they do not have any 
objection to the dismissal; or 

 
7.4.5 the Proper Officer has notified the Employment Committee that no objection was 

received by him within the specified period from any member of the Executive; or 
 
7.4.6 the Employment Committee is satisfied that any objection received is not material 

and/or is not well-founded8.    
 
 
8.0 POLITICAL ASSISTANTS 
 
8.1  Not more than one political assistant’s post shall be allocated by the Council, from 

time to time, to each of the qualifying political groups into which the Council is 
divided. 
 

                                            
 
 
7 It will be a matter for the Employment Committee to determine in each case what particulars are relevant 
for these purposes. 
8 It will be a matter for the Employment Committee to determine in each case whether any particular 
objection is material and/or well-founded, not being matters which relate to a protected characteristic under 
s.4 of the Equality Act 2010.  The terms “material” and “well-founded” shall bear their normal dictionary 
meanings. 

Page 10



Officer Employment Procedure Rules                

Part 4(j) 
Page 7 of 7 

Issue 1- 2018/19 
1st April 2017 

8.2  No appointment to a political assistant’s post shall be made until the Council has 
allocated such a post to each qualifying political group. 

 
8.3 For the purpose of this Rule, a “qualifying political group” means a political group 

which qualifies for the allocation to it of a political assistant’s post in accordance 
with sub-sections 6 and 7 of Section 9 of the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989. 

 
9.0  POLITICAL RESTRICTIONS ON COUNCIL EMPLOYEES 
 
9.1  All persons exercising powers of appointment, shall do so only in accordance with 

the legislative provisions restricting political activity as detailed in the Local 
Government Act 1972 and the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 
 

9.2  The Head of Paid Service will, in accordance with the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 and if requested to do so, determine whether to grant or revoke 
exemptions to posts from inclusion on the list of politically restricted posts 
maintained by the Council.  In carrying out these functions, the Head of Paid 
Service will consult the Monitoring Officer. 
 

9.3  Directors have a duty to apply to the Head of Paid Service to revoke any exemption 
to inclusion on the list of politically restricted posts, for a post within their service 
area, where the duties of that post have substantially changed and/or where the 
Director believes that the exemption is no longer appropriate. 
 

9.4  The Chief Officer (Human Resources) will maintain a list of all politically restricted 
posts within the Council. Directors have a duty to inform the Chief Officer (Human 
Resources) of any post within their structures which should be included on the list of 
politically restricted posts under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of: Director of Adults and Health 

Report to: Employment Committee 

Date: 10th January 2020 

Subject: Appointment of Director of Public Health    

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes X  No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes X No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? 

 

  Yes X No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? X Yes  No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 
 
Appendix 2 is exempt under rule (10.4 (1) & (2)) 

Summary of main issues  

This report outlines the reasons for the permanent recruitment to the post of Director of 
Public Health in the Adults and Health Directorate.  
 
The Employment Committee is asked to: 

 Note the process for the recruitment of the post of Director of Public Health; and  

 Following the interview process, should an appropriate candidate be identified, make 
an offer of appointment, subject to the associated notification processes, as set out 
within the Officer Employment Procedure Rules. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Report author: Claire Domeney  
HR Business Partner    

Tel: 89278 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 
 

1.1 This report outlines the reasons for the permanent recruitment to the post of 
Director of Public Health in the Adults and Health Directorate. 
 

2 Background information 
 

2.1 The current Director of Public Health will be retiring from the Council on 29th 
February 2019, the Director of Adults and Health proposes to commence the 
recruitment process now.  

 
3 Main issues 
 
3.1 The post of Director of Public Health is strategically and operationally responsible 

for improving the health and wellbeing of residents, reducing inequalities in health 
outcomes and protecting local communities from public health hazards. 

3.2 The grade of this role has been reviewed and is established at the JNC current 
grade of Dir 90%.  This role is likely to attract medical professionals within from 
the health sector and although the successful applicant will be placed on Local 
Authority terms and conditions, there is potential for NHS medical consultant 
terms and conditions to be applied for appropriate applicants) 

3.3 The advert, role profile and role specification for this is attached and has been 
evaluated in line with Leeds City Councils processes for JNC posts. (Appendix 1a, 
1b & 1c). 

 
3.4 Tenders were invited for Executive Search and Selection in February to assist 

with the recruitment process. Penna were successful with their tender bid. 
  

3.5 The post has been advertised externally on the Leeds City Council job site, The 
MJ print, The Health Services Journal on-line, NHS jobs and the Penna website. 
The Executive Search and Selection agency, Penna has been engaged in 
assisting the Council with the recruitment and selection.   

 
3.6 The recruitment process is being co-ordinated by Human Resources. The 

Recruitment timeline is as follows: 
 

 Job advert close – 19th December 2019; 

 Short/Long List by Employment Committee and AAC (Appointments Advisory 
Committee) the Faculty of Public Health process – 10th January 2020; 

 Technical Assessments/Interviews 31st January 2020; 
 
4 Corporate Considerations 

 
4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

 
4.1.1 The proposals contained in this report have been consulted with the leadership of 

the Council and Executive Members. Consultations have also taken place with the 
trade unions.   
  

Page 14



 

 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 
 

4.2.2 This is a senior role and has been subject to external advertisement for an 
inclusive search to maximise the diversity of applicants. 

 
4.3 Council policies and the Best Council Plan 

 
4.3.1 Recruiting to this role will build on achievements to date and continue to deliver 

positive outcomes for Leeds. This will be done by creating a culture of excellence 
in service delivery and continuous improvement that focusses on maximising 
resources and delivers agreed outcomes and objectives in accordance with the 
values, vision and service priorities.  

 
4.4 Resources and value for money  

 
4.4.1 The post is an established post and is within the budget provision for 2020/2021. 

 
4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

 
4.5.1 This post is an Employment Committee appointment in line with the criteria set out 

in the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, and will be recruited to in accordance 
with those Procedure Rules. 
 

4.5.2 Due to the nature of the role we have an obligation to also work alongside the 
AAC, Appointments Advisory Committee which is a stipulation of the Faculty of 
Public Health. This will form part of a hybrid appointment process. 

 
4.5.3 Candidate information as part of this recruitment exercise is detailed within 

Appendix 2 which is exempt from publication. It is considered that this information 
will relate to individuals personal details. 

 
Also it is considered that the release of such information in Appendix 2 would, or 
would be likely to prejudice the Council’s ability to recruit effectively to similar 
posts in the future.  
 
It is therefore considered that future candidate information in Appendix 2 should 
be treated as exempt from publication under the provisions of paragraphs 10.4 (1) 
and (2) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules. 
 

4.6 Risk Management 
 

4.6.1 The Council has responsibilities for the health and wellbeing of all residents and 
failure to recruit to this key senior leadership post will impact on its ability to fulfil 
these responsibilities.  

 
5 Conclusions 
 
5.1  Members of the Employment Committee are requested to agree the content of this 

report. 
 

6 Recommendations 

Page 15



 

 

 
6.1  The Employment Committee is asked to: 
 
6.1.1 Note the process for the recruitment of the post of Director of Public Health; and 
 
6.1.2  Following the interview process, should an appropriate candidate be identified, 

make an offer of appointment, subject to the associated notification processes, as 
set out within the Officer Employment Procedure Rules. 
 

7 Background documents1  
 

7.1 N/A 
 
Appendixes for the report 

 
Appendix 1 Advert, Role Profile and Role Specification  
Appendix 2 Candidate Information – Exempt from publication under the provisions 
of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(1) & (2) 

 
 
 

                                            
1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 16



 

 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
 
 
Title:     Director of Public Health 
  
Employing Organisation:  Leeds City Council 
 
Accountable to: Professionally accountable to the Council (and the Secretary 

of State for Health through Public Health England) 
Managerially accountable to Director of Adults and Health, 
Leeds City Council 

 
Hours:  Full time Normally 37.5 hours 
 
Work base:  Merrion House, Merrion Way, Leeds 
 
Salary:  
 
Key Relationships   The Council 

Cabinet/Portfolio holder 
Elected Members 
Corporate Leadership Team 

     Senior Management Team 
     Local NHS bodies including Clinical Commissioning Groups 
     Public Health England 
     Health and Wellbeing Board 
     Local Resilience Forum/Local Health Resilience Partnership 

NHS England 
     The public and the press  
 
Job Summary 
 
The Director of Public Health is the system leader for improving the health and wellbeing of 
residents, reducing inequalities in health outcomes and protecting local communities from public 
health hazards (infectious diseases and environmental threats). As such, the Director of Public 
Health is a statutory chief officer of the authority and the principal adviser on all health matters to 
elected members, officers and partners, with a leadership role spanning health improvement, 
health protection and healthcare public health. The Director of Public Health will have direct access 
to the Chief Executive and elected members for the exercise of the local authority’s public health 
functions. Day to day line management accountability will be to the Director of Adults & Health but 
the Director of Public Health will work corporately across all functions of the Council to support the 
delivery of his/her responsibilities.  
 
Section 73A(1) of the NHS Act 2006, inserted by section 30 of the Health and Social Care Act 
2012, gives the Director of Public Health responsibility for: 
 

 all of their local authority’s duties to improve public health 

 any of the Secretary of State’s public health protection or health improvement functions that 
s/he delegates to local authorities, either by arrangement or under regulations – these 
include services mandated by regulations made under section 6C of the 2006 Act, inserted 
by section 18 of the 2012 Act 

 exercising their local authority’s functions in planning for, and responding to, emergencies 
that present a risk to public health 

 their local authority’s role in co-operating with the police, the probation service and the 
prison service to assess the risks posed by violent or sexual offenders 

Page 17



 such other public health functions as the Secretary of State specifies in regulations 

 producing an independent annual report on the health of local communities 
 

In order to deliver their responsibilities on behalf of the residents of Leeds the DPH will need to be 
a visible system leader in the health and wellbeing partnership arrangements.  The DPH will be 
expected to use all the resources at their disposal to ensure that the local public health system is 
able to tackle the full range of determinants of health affecting communities in Leeds.  Working with 
local communities, he/she should be able to inspire development of innovative solutions that 
support improvements in health and wellbeing and reduction in health inequalities whilst at the 
same time maintaining the confidence of Councillors and government. 
 
Description of the LA and the Public Health Department 
 
Public Health, along with Adult Social Care and the Health Partnerships Team is part of the Adults 

and Health Directorate within Leeds City Council. The Adults & Health Directorate in turn sits 

alongside the Directorate of Children’s & Families; Resources & Housing; Communities & 

Environment; City Development. 

There are around 95 staff, including those in Public Health Resource Centre and the Public Health 

Intelligence team – which is integrated with the Leeds CCG Intelligence team. There are four 

Consultants in Public Health and Leeds is a public health training base. 

Leeds City Council has a vision to be the best city in the UK; one that is compassionate and caring 

with a strong economy, which tackles poverty and reduces inequalities. “Public Health plays its part 

in delivering that vision through the two overlapping key partnership strategies for the city – the 

Health & Well Being Strategy and the Inclusive Growth Strategy. More recently, a third on climate 

change is being developed. Public Health is well represented in partnership arrangements. There 

are close working relationships within the Council and also with the NHS. The Director of Public 

Health is a member of the governing body of the Leeds CCG and public health staff support the 

commissioning roles of the CCG and with the new development of Local Care 

Partnerships/Primary Care Networks.  

Public Health funded staff work within Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust and Leeds and York 

Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. There is a strong commitment by Leeds City Council and the 

NHS in Leeds to engage and influence the West Yorkshire & Harrogate Integrated Care System 

Public Health has had a leading role in developing the prevention, health inequalities, wider 

determinants, population health management elements of the West Yorkshire & Harrogate ICS 

Five Year Strategy. 

 
Job purpose and key responsibilities 
 
The fundamental purpose of the postholder is to provide the leadership to drive improvements in 
the health and wellbeing of the residents of Leeds, to reduce inequalities in health outcomes and 
working in collaboration with PHE to protect local communities from threats to their health through 
infectious diseases, environmental and other public health hazards. In delivering the key 
responsibilities described below, the postholder is expected to demonstrate a high level of 
expertise in the Faculty of Public Health Competencies (Appendix A) and the person specifications 
(Appendix B).  
 

a) Support the Chief Executive and Councillors in developing and delivering the Council’s 
strategic agenda 

b) Be the chief officer and principal adviser on public health to the Council, local communities 
and local partners 

c) Operate strategically as an attendee of the executive board and across the Council 
influencing policy and practice. 

d) To deliver commission, and or deliver services which are effective, value for money and 
meet quality standards. 

Page 18



e) To act as a leader across the local system of public services, influencing change and 
enabling a culture of continuous improvement in health and wellbeing, innovation and 
evaluation.  

f) Utilise the public health resources imaginatively and cost effectively across all domains of 
public health in order to improve health and wellbeing of local communities and reduce 
inequalities in health outcomes. 

g) Accountable for both the shaping and delivery of the Health and Wellbeing agenda taking 
account of the national agenda and benchmarking (using the national outcomes 
frameworks; public health, NHS and social care).  

h) Deliver an independent annual report on the health and wellbeing of local communities for 
publication by the Leeds City Council, to stimulate debate and/or action by the Council and 
partners. 

 
The person specifications for the post are set out in appendix B. In delivering the responsibilities 
outlined above, the postholder and his/her team will undertake the following tasks: 
 

1. Strategic Leadership 

 Delivery of a system to support surveillance, monitoring and evaluation of health and 
wellbeing and inequalities in health outcomes of local communities (including supporting an 
easily accessible Joint Strategic Needs Assessment System) 

 Ensure all activity undertaken by the Council takes account of both, the need to reduce 
inequalities as well as the requirements of the Equality and Diversity Act. 

 To ensure scientific principles are applied to assessing need, exploring interventions and 
assessing progress of the Council’s strategic agenda. 

 Ensure as a core member of the Health and Wellbeing Board and in partnership with the 
wider Leeds City Council, partners and the public, the development of plans to enable local 
communities become  healthy, sustainable and cohesive   

 Ensure a programme of action (both within and out with the Council) to impact on the wider 
determinants of health that will promote improvements in health and wellbeing of local 
communities and reduction in health inequalities. 

 Provide assurance that the health protection system for local communities is fit for purpose 

 To work closely with Directors responsible for people (children, vulnerable communities and 
older people) to ensure to develop, implement and maintain a “fit for purpose” integrated 
strategy which meets the needs of local communities and is cogent with the national 
approach. 

 Collaborate across organisational boundaries to ensure communities in Leeds benefit from 
population health and care programmes (e.g. via West Yorkshire & Harrogate Integrated 
Care System) 

  
2. Directorate Specific Accountabilities 

 To be an advocate for improving health and wellbeing and reducing health inequalities 

 Exercise the statutory responsibilities including the delivery of the mandated services 

 To advise Leeds City Council on its statutory and professional public health obligations. 

 Work with the PHE Centre and NHS England to ensure local communities are protected 
from  infectious disease threats (including food and water borne disease, pandemics, etc) 
and  environmental hazards 

 Ensure the development and delivery of a credible plan to improve health and wellbeing of 
communities in Leeds City Council and reduce health inequalities. 

 Ensure that the Council has implemented its EPRR responsibilities and through Co-
chairing/membership of the Local Health Resilience Partnership, that partner organisations 
(PHE, NHS England and the CCGs) have delivered their EPRR responsibilities.  

 Work in partnership with Leeds CCG and Directors of Social care to take responsibility for  
Population Health and Care; including oversight and promoting population coverage of 
immunisation and screening programmes 

 Provide public health advice (the core offer) to support the commissioning of appropriate, 
effective (based on evidence), and equitable health services. 

 Support the Health and Wellbeing Board to deliver its statutory duty to promote integration 
for the benefit of local communities  

Page 19



 Collaborate across local authority boundaries to ensure residents of Leeds benefit from 
population health and care programmes. 

 
3. Resource Management 

 To be accountable for the budget including reporting on the use of the public health ring 
fenced grant. 

 To manage Council resources (People, property, information and finance) imaginatively 
and efficiently. 

 Set, monitor and control budgets and authorise expenditure in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution and Scheme of Delegation. 

 Manage public health staff and ensure that they are able to influence in such a way as to 
ensure health and wellbeing in its fullest sense is central to the <name of place>.   

 
4. Commissioning 

 Ensure services for improving health and wellbeing of local communities are commissioned 
within the Council policy for procurement and monitoring system and are responsive to the 
needs of the communities in Leeds and over time. 

 To set the framework for standards for commissioning and delivery; including the promotion 
of innovative approaches and appropriate risk management systems which are responsive 
to performance challenges. 

 To ensure scientific principles of evaluation underpin all commissioning and delivery, of 
health and wellbeing services. 

 
5. Advocacy 

 Develop a constructive relationship with the media and the public, within the context of the 
Council Communications policy. 

 To use the Faculty of Public Health, the LGA, the ADsPH, PHE and other channels to 
advocate for the public’s health. 

 
Management arrangements 
 
The Director of Public Health will be professionally accountable to the Council (and Secretary of 
State for Health through Public Health England) and managerially accountable to the Director of 
Adults and Health and Chief Executive of the Local Authority.   An initial job plan will be agreed with 
the successful candidate and reviewed annually. 

 
 
The Director of Public Health will: 

1. Manage approximately 65 staff (including trainees) and commissioning arrangements. 
2. Manage budgets of approximately £43m per annum. In addition there will be involvement 

with larger partner budgets. 
3. Be expected to take part in on call arrangements for communicable disease control/health 

protection as appropriate depending on local arrangements 
4. Ensure appropriate management and support for Specialty Registrars (in Public Health) 

 
 
Professional obligations  
 
Professional responsibilities will be reflected in the job plan. The Director of Public Health will be 
expected to: 
 

Page 20



1. Participate in the organisation’s staff and professional appraisal scheme and ensure 
participation of all staff members.  

2. Ensure quality improvement (and clinical governance) programmes are an integral 
component of the public health approach in the Council. 

3. Contribute actively to the training programme for Foundation Year Doctors/Specialty 
Registrars in Public Health as appropriate, and to the training of practitioners and primary 
care professionals within the locality. 

4. Pursue a programme of CPD, in accordance with Faculty of Public Health requirements, or 
other recognised body, and undertake revalidation or other measures required to remain on 
the GMC/GDC Specialist Register with a license to practice or the UK Public Health 
(Specialist) Register or other specialist register as appropriate.  

5. Practise in accordance with all relevant sections of the General Medical Council’s Good 
Medical Practice (if medically qualified). 

6. Agree any external professional roles and the time required to deliver those roles with the 
Council.  

 

 
 
 
 

Page 21



Appendix A 
 

Faculty of Public Health: Competencies expected of all public health 
consultants/ specialists 

 
All consultants irrespective of their background are expected to be proficient in the 
competencies set out below.  
 

I. Use of public health intelligence to survey and assess a population’s 
health and wellbeing 
To be able to synthesise data into information about the surveillance or 
assessment of a population’s health and wellbeing from multiple sources that 
can be communicated clearly and inform action planning to improve 
population health outcomes. 
 

II. Assessing the evidence of effectiveness of interventions, programmes 
and services intended to improve the health or wellbeing of individuals 
or populations 
To be able to use a range of resources to generate and communicate 
appropriately evidenced and informed recommendations for improving 
population health across operational and strategic health and care settings. 
 

III. Policy and strategy development and implementation 
To influence and contribute to the development of policy and lead the 
development and implementation of a strategy. 
 

IV. Strategic leadership and collaborative working for health 
To use a range of effective strategic leadership, organisational and 
management skills, in a variety of complex public health situations and 
contexts, dealing effectively with uncertainty and the unexpected to achieve 
public health goals. 
 

V. Health Improvement, Determinants of Health, and Health 
Communication 
To influence and act on the broad determinants and behaviours influencing 
health at a system,   community and individual level. 
 

VI. Health Protection  
To identify, assess and communicate risks associated with hazards relevant 
to health protection, and to lead and co-ordinate the appropriate public health 
response. 
 

VII. Health and Care Public Health  
To be able to improve the efficiency, effectiveness, safety, reliability, 
responsiveness and equity of health and care services through applying 
insights from multiple sources including formal research, health surveillance, 
needs analysis, service monitoring and evaluation. 
 

VIII. Academic public health 
To add an academic perspective to all public health work undertaken. 
Specifically to be able to critically appraise evidence to inform policy and 
practice, identify evidence gaps with strategies to address these 
gaps, undertake research activities of a standard that is publishable in peer-
reviewed journals, and demonstrate competence in teaching and learning 
across all areas of public health practice. 

Page 22



 
IX. Professional, personal and ethical development 

To be able to shape, pursue actively and evaluate your own personal and 
professional development, using insight into your own behaviours and 
attitudes and their impact to modify behaviour and to practice within the 
framework of the GMC's Good Medical Practice (as used for appraisal and 
revalidation for consultants in public health) and the UKPHR’s Code of 
Conduct. 
 

X. Integration and application for consultant practice 
To be able to demonstrate the consistent use of sound judgment to select 
from a range of advanced public health expertise and skills, and to use them 
effectively, working at senior organisational levels, to deliver improved 
population health in complex and unpredictable environments. 

  
The DPH as a public health leader is expected to have both the technical expertise 
as well as the ability to use those techniques to both, lead and support the 
development of complex solutions to improve the health and wellbeing of local 
communities. In addition, they are expected to have skills and the attitudes to be able 
to present the results of applying their technical expertise so that they are 
understandable and stimulate actions by a range of individuals and organisations.  

Page 23



 Appendix B 
PERSON SPECIFICATION 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

Leeds City Council 
 

Competencies and other requirements 

Behaviours Recruitment and 
selection 

Leadership 
Establishing and promoting a clear public health vision which is 
coherent with the business strategy and the political vision for 
Leeds City Council and consistent with Government policy and 
takes account of social and economic trends. This is about role 
modelling through their own actions the types of behaviours 
expected of others in creating a high performing public health 
culture. 

 Developing an effective PH team with appropriate skill mix 
to enable the Authority to deliver its full range of PH 
responsibilities 

 Developing effective relationships with elected members to 
ensure a coherent PH vision and operational plan 

 Work with fellow directors to enable/ensure public health 
perspective/principles underpin all aspects of LA delivery 

 Work with communities and media to ensure needs of local 
communities are made explicit and addressed by the H&WB 

 Deliver the independent report of the DPH in such a way as 
to compel all members of the H&WB to take action 
 

 
CV and Interview 
 

Community and population focus 
It means working together to a common agenda and objectives with 
a shared purpose and common values, always looking for ways to 
improve access to services by communities and individuals.  This is 
seen by: 

 Actively seeking to understand the communities that are 
served and promoting and demonstrating an active 
commitment to meet their needs 

 Setting new standards for innovation in commissioning and 
delivery of services that anticipate and exceed expectations 

 Engaging with a wide range of stakeholders and partners to 
gather and evaluate information and make collaborative 
judgements and decisions 

 Making timely and where needed, difficult decisions for the 
benefit of the people of ……… 

 
Application form 
Interview 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Results Focus 
Co-development of a model of health with local stakeholders 
(including local communities) and the metrics to support; taking 
account of Public Health Outcomes Framework, the NHS 
Outcomes Framework and the Social Care Outcomes Framework. 
This is seen by: 

 Acknowledging and working with ambiguity and complexity, 
making significant decisions where no precedents exist 

 Ensuring a best practice performance culture is developed 
and sustained 

 
 
 
 
 
Interview 

Page 24



 Setting, communicating and monitoring stretching 
organisational objectives and objectives 

 Pro-actively identifying corporate, directorate and service 
risks, and ensuring action is taken to mitigate them 

 Formulating risk management plans and creating a positive 
health and safety culture 

Improvement and Change   
Developing and sustaining a culture of innovation and creativity 
underpinned by evaluation, where employees are engaged and 
have the desire to do things better, more efficiently and effectively 
to improve performance.  This is seen by: 

 Taking risks and moving into unchartered territory while 
taking accountability for results and failures 

 Welcoming the inevitable mistakes as part of the creative 
process 

 Suggesting the unthinkable to stimulate alternate ways of 
thinking 

 Focusing team performance on the achievement of 
outcomes that will maximise the resources available 

 Finding new ways of securing or deploying significant 
amounts of financial resource to meet new objectives 

 Advocating and role modelling the use of evaluation 
techniques to support innovation  

 
Interview 
 
 
 
 
 

People Development 
Knowing and managing the strategic talent requirements for the 
organisation.  It is about promoting and encouraging a culture 
where people focus on developing themselves and others to deliver 
improvement while developing careers.  This is seen by: 

 Holding direct reports accountable for people development 
generally and specifically for releasing high performers for 
personal development 

 Articulating the many long-term benefits of talent 
management and developing the talent pools required for 
succession 

 Ensuring comprehensive workforce plans are in place 

 
Application form  
Interview 
 

Functional competencies 

 Demonstrates detailed knowledge of methods of developing 
clinical quality assurance, quality improvement and 
evidence based clinical and/or public health practice. 

 Full and high level of understanding of epidemiology and 
statistics, public health practice, health promotion, health 
economics and health care evaluation.  Develops service 
practices and ensures appropriate application.  Provides 
advice on the more complex instances 

 
Application form 
Interview 

 Detailed knowledge and experience in driving and assisting 
in the management of change in a variety of settings, 
proactively seeking opportunities to create and implement 
improved service effectiveness 

Application form 
Interview 
 

 Detailed knowledge of personnel management.  Carries out 
effective performance management of staff and 
demonstrates understanding of policies related to pay, 
capability, disciplinary matters and grievances.  Plans 
department activities and use of staff resources effectively.  

Application form 
Interview 

Page 25



Participates in workforce planning and training needs 
assessments 

 Demonstrates knowledge of project management tools and 
techniques.  Sufficient skill to develop and implement large 
scale projects, utilising and leading multi-skilled project 
teams. 

Application form 

Qualifications 

 Inclusion in the GMC Full and Specialist Register with a 
license to practice/GDC Specialist List (or be eligible for 
registration within six months of interview) or 

 Inclusion in the UK Public Health  Register (UKPHR) for 
Public Health Specialists (or be eligible for registration 
within six months of interview)  

 If included in the GMC Specialist Register/GDC Specialist 
List in a specialty other than public health medicine/dental 
public health, candidates must have equivalent training 
and/or appropriate experience of public health practice 

 Public health specialty registrar applicants who are not yet on 
the GMC Specialist Register/GDC Specialist List in dental 
public health/UKPHR must provide verifiable signed 
documentary evidence that they are within 6 months of 
gaining entry at the date of interview;  all other applicants 
must provide verifiable signed documentary evidence that 
they have applied for inclusion in the GMC/GDC/UKPHR 
specialist registers  

 If an applicant is UK trained in Public Health, they must 
ALSO be a holder of a Certificate of Completion of Training 
(CCT), or be within six months of award of CCT by date of 
interview 

 If an applicant is non-UK trained, they will be required to 
show evidence of equivalence to the UK CCT  

 MFPH by examination, by exemption or by assessment 

Recruitment and 
selection 
Application form 
 

 Must meet minimum CPD requirements (i.e. be up to date) 
in accordance with the Faculty of Public Health 
requirements or other recognised body 

Application form 
 

Knowledge, experience and skills  

 Understanding of NHS and local government cultures, 
structures and policies 

Interview 

 Understanding of social and political environment Interview 

 Excellent oral and written communication skills (including 
dealing with the media) including to present to mixed 
audiences and the media 

Application form 
Interview 

 Practical experience in facilitating change Application form 
Interview 

 Budget management skills Application form 

 The normal duties of the role may involve travel on a regular 
or occasional basis.  It is a condition of employment that the 
role holder can exercise satisfactory travel mobility in order 
to fulfil the obligations of the role.  For those journeys where 
an alternative form of transport is unavailable or 
impracticable the role holder will be required to provide a 
suitable vehicle 

Application form 

Page 26



 This position is subject to a criminal records disclosure 
check 

YES 

 This is a politically restrictive position YES 
 

 
  

 
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
 Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (1, 2)



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Candidate No. 8 

 

(Marginal) 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 115

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
 Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (1, 2)



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Candidate No. 9 

 

(Not Recommended) 
 

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 129

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
 Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (1, 2)



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Candidate No. 10 

 

(Not Recommended) 
 

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 139

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
 Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (1, 2)



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Candidate No. 11 

 

(Not Recommended) 
 

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 157

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
 Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (1, 2)



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Candidate No. 12 

 

(Not Recommended) 
 

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 175

Exempt / Confidential Under Access to 
 Information Procedure Rules 10.4 (1, 2)



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Governance Arrangements Regarding Recruitment to the Position of Director of Public Health
	Appendix 1

	7 Appointment of Director of Public Health
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Candidate No. 8
	Applicant No. 8
	Candidate No.9
	Applicant No. 9
	Candidate No.10
	Applicant No.10
	Candidate No.11
	Applicant N0.11
	Candidate No.12
	Applicant No.12


